

Assessment of the initial state of two reserves, Micro áreas Ecoturísticas Litorales (MAEL), in Gran Canaria, Canary Islands



Javier Rodrigo Vidal López Tesina de Máster en Oceanografía. Universidad de Las Palmas de Gran Canaria

Directores: Dr. Fernando Tuya & Arturo Boyra López Tutor: Dr. Antonio Juan González Ramos





Assessment of the initial state of two reserves, *Micro áreas Ecoturísticas Litorales* (MAEL), in Gran Canaria, Canary Islands

Tesis de Máster presentada por Javier R. Vidal López

Dirigida por Fernando Tuya y Arturo Boyra

Tutorizada por Antonio Juan González Ramos

Tutor

Directores

Tesinando

Las Palmas de Gran Canaria, julio de 2014

CONTENTS

1.	ABSTRACT	4-6
2.	INTRODUCTION	6-8
3.	MATERIAL AND METHODS	8-12
3.1	Study area and sampling design	8
3.2 grc	Selection of fish species, trophic and functional oups	10
3.3	Data analysis	12
4.	RESULTS	13-23
4.1	Commercially-targeted species	13
4.2	Taxonomic, trophic and functional diversity	20
4.3 div	Correlation between taxonomic, trophic and functiona ersity	l 22
5.	DISCUSSION	24-26
5.1	Overall results	24
5.2	Cabrón-Risco Verde	24
5.3	Canteras-Confital	25
5.4 div	Link between taxonomic, trophic and functional ersity	26
6.	ACKNOWLEDGES	26
7.	REFERENCES	27-32
8.	APPENDIX	33



1. Abstract

The establishment of 'Micro áreas ecoturísticas litorales' (MAELs) is a new strategy of marine conservation and management, based on a bottom-up governance strategy. In this study, we assessed the initial state ('state 0') of two MAELs at Gran Canaria Island (Canary Islands): 'El Cabrón' and 'Las Canteras', located in the east and in north-east coast of Gran Canaria Island, respectively. Specifically, we evaluated differences in the abundance and biomass of target fish species between inside (MAELI) and outside (MAELO) these two proposed reserves; five commercially-targeted fish species were selected: the parrotfish, Sparisoma cretense, the white sea-bream, Diplodus sargus cadenati, the common two-banded sea-bream, Diplodus vulgaris, the island grouper, Mycteroperca fusca, and salema, Sarpa salpa. Fish assemblages were sampled at 7 times within each management category in during summer and autumn of 2013. Univariate tests provided an overall moderate 'reserve effect' for the initial state of both MAELs. Mycteroperca fusca and Diplodus vulgaris showed greater abundances and biomasses, respectively, within the 'El Cabrón' MAELI compared to the adjacent MAELO. Sparisoma cretense, Diplodus sargus cadenati, Diplodus vulgaris and Sarpa salpa showed greater abundances and biomasses within the 'Las Canteras' MAELI compared to the adjacent MAELO. Furthermore, we tested whether taxonomic diversity (through calculation of the Shannon diversity index for the entire fish assemblage) may be a surrogate for the trophic and functional diversity of the fish assemblage to adequately support the capacity of MAMPs to preserve marine biodiversity. Our data suggested a neat link between them. Keywords: Micro áreas marinas protegidas, MAMPs, functional diversity, taxonomic diversity, trophic diversity, target species and reserve effect.

Resumen

'*Micro áreas ecoturísticas litorales*' (MAELs) es una nueva estrategia de gestión y conservación marina, basada en la estructura de decisión bottom-up. En este estudio, evaluamos el estado inicial ('estado 0') de dos MAELs en Gran Canaria (Islas Canarias). 'El Cabrón' y 'Las Canteras', localizadas en este y noreste de la isla de Gran Canaria, respectivamente. Específicamente, evaluamos diferencias en abundancia y biomasa de especies de peces objetivo-comerciales, dentro (MAELI) y fuera (MAELO) de las dos reservas propuestas; Las cinco especies comerciales estudiadas fueron: *Sparisoma cretense, Diplodus sarguscadenati, Diplodus vulgaris, Mycteroperca fusca y Sarpa salpa.* Las poblaciones de peces



fueron muestreadas durante 7 tiempos comprendidos entre verano y otoño de 2013. Tests univariantes mostraron un moderado 'efecto reserva' durante el estado inicial de las dos MAELS. *Mycteroperca fusca* y *Diplodus vulgaris* mostraron mayores abundancias y biomasas, respectivamente, dentro 'El Cabrón' MAELI comparadas con la zona adyacente MAELO. *Sparisoma cretense, Diplodus sargus cadenati, Diplodus vulgaris* y *Sarpa salpa* mostraron mayores abundancias y biomasas dentro de 'Las Canteras' MAELI comparado con la zona adyacente MAELO. Además, testamos si la diversidad taxonómica (mediante el cálculo del índice de diversidad de Shannon para la población de peces) puede estar relacionada con la diversidad trófica y funcional de la población de peces para evaluar la capacidad de preservar la biodiversidad marina de las MAMPs. Encontramos en nuestros datos una unión entre ellas.

Palabras clave: Micro áreas marinas protegidas, MAMPs, diversidad funcional, diversidad taxonómica, diversidad trófica, especies objetivo y efecto reserva.



2. Introduction

The United Nations (UN) for Food and Agriculture Organization's (FAO) estimate that 75% of the world's fisheries are actually overexploited (Ray Hilborn et al., 2005). In particular, shallow-water fishery resources are being subjected to strong anthropogenic pressures, including overexploitation in the last decades (Lauck et al., 1998; Castilla., 2000). In fact, the main source of erosion of marine ecosystem biodiversity is overfishing (Jackson et al., 2001), but there are others sources of biodiversity loss such as pollution (European agency, 2006), invasion by alien species (Gollasch., 2006) and catastrophes induced by global warming (Harley et al., 2006). A solution to preserve coastal resources consists in the establishment of Marine protected areas (MPAs). Two main objectives have been identified when addressing the purposes of MPAs: ensuring sustainable use of economic resources, and protecting biodiversity - valuable species, habitats and landscapes (Salm et al. 2000): In turn, the number of MPA has been increasing in the last decades, to preserve and manage coastal resources and their habitats, and so coastal ecosystems and their biodiversity (Fraschetti et al., 2011).

The efficacy of MPAs has been widely discussed (Harmelin-Vivien et al., 1995; Guidetti et al., 2005; Micheli et al., 2005), what depends on a range of different factors (Barret et al., 2007), as the size of no-take and adjacent buffering areas (Claudet 2008; 2010), the time since protection (Micheli et al., 2004), connectivity with adjacent zones (Vega Fernandez et al., 2008) and, of course, the effective level of enforcement and compliance by local administrations and users (Claudet, 2010).

A new strategy of marine conservation and management promote the establishment of *Micro áreas ecoturísticas litorales* (MAELs), which are based on a bottom-up governance philosophy. In this case, local communities boost the establishment and declaration of protected areas via local administrations, rather than relying on legal authorities with competence in fisheries and conservation management The overall goal of MAELs is to contribute to the conservation of the biological diversity and productivity of the oceans, including ecosystem processes, but promoting sustainable uses such as eco-tourism, traditional fishing, scientific research and so to improve local economy.

Traditionally, management of coastal ecosystems have followed a (top-down approach), where governmental bodies decide on specific regulations. Frequently, MPA governing bodies have not taken full responsibilities in their attempts at management; in turn, managers fail to recognize and encompass



stakeholder opinions in their attempts at realizing a successful MPA (Himes, 2007). A different strategy, promotes stakeholder participation, via a bottom-up

strategy, where local communities, users and local-administrations collaborate since the earliest stage of creation of these reserves. It has been widely recognized that public participation and local community involvement is an essential factor contributing to the success of MPAs (Fiske, 1992; Wolfenden, 1994). For example, changes in policies concerning how exploitation of marine resources in the Philippines should be implemented have shifted from a centralized bureaucracy to co-management among local communities, local administration, and the national government (Alcala et al., 2006). Galicia (NW Spain) has pioneered co-management initiatives proposing the creation of a marine reserve, designed and developed by the fishers in partnership with biologists and social scientists, environmentalists and members of the autonomous Government of Galicia (Perez, 2013).

Typically, reserves established via bottom-up governance approaches are of reduced size. The positive effects of small-sized reserves, i.e. with a similar size to the MAELs, have been demonstrated in many cases (Lester et al., 2009; Afonso et al., 2011; Hort et al., 2013), we show the positive the effects of small-sized reserves around the world (Appendix 1). Moreover, a small size do facilitate co-management between stakeholders (e.g. fishers, users, divers, administration), favoring a sustainable management. A goal of any marine reserve is to evaluate the expected benefits, either from an ecological point of view, or also through social and economic metrics. In the literature, there are many different population parameters as bioindicators to assess such expected 'reserve effect'.

Many biological studies have focused on one or several target species and, in many circumstances, reported increased abundances and larger sizes inside MPAs (e.g. Barret et al., 2006; Tuya et al., 2006; Brito et al., 1997, 1998, 2001). However, conservation of particular species is questioned, because it depends on species-specific life traits (Villamor et al., 2012). Moreover, understanding species' role in nature is limited; less 1% have been studied (Wilson, 2000), a species can be considered to be functionally redundant when the community contains functionally-analogous species, so that its disappearance from the community entails no measurable loss of functionality (Duarte, 2000).

Relationships between species, their biodiversity and ecosystem function are important for predicting the ecological and economic impact of human



interventions (Armsworth et al., 2007). Indices based only on the taxonomic identity provide an incomplete view of biodiversity (Villeger et al., 2010). A recent consensus point out the importance of particular taxa rather than species richness to explain ecosystem processes in aquatic communities (O'Connor et al., 2008). A step further in biodiversity assessment needs to consider the role of each species in ecosystems or species responses to environmental conditions. This can be somehow approached through the estimation of trophic and functional diversity of biotic communities in conjunction with taxonomic diversity studies (Mc Gill et al., 2006). Thereby, taxonomic studies that traditionally have focused on the identity of species may be complemented with trophic and functional diversity approaches to adequately support the capacity of MAELs to preserve marine biodiversity.

In this study, our goal was to assess the initial state ('state 0') of two MAELs at Gran Canaria Island, by comparing several descriptors inside and outside these two proposed reserves. This included the abundances and total biomasses of several target species (univariate responses), as well as estimators of the taxonomic diversity (through Shannon diversity index) and trophic and functional diversity (multivariate responses). We ultimately aimed to unravel whether taxonomic, trophic and functional diversity were correlated within the study systems.

3. Material and methods

3.1 Study area and sampling design

This study focused on two recently proposed *Micro áreas ecoturísticas litorales* (MAELs) at Gran Canaria Island. The first, 'El Cabrón', is located in the east side of Gran Canaria Island. The second, 'Las Canteras', is located in north-east side of the island (Fig 1). Both zones are biogeographically and climatically similar. At both locations, two adjacent areas were studied, one within the proposed MAEL: no take zone (MAELI), where the exploitation of benthic and demersal resources will be prohibited, hereafter so-called 'Cabrón' and 'Canteras', respectively, and two adjacent areas outside these protected areas (MAELO), hereafter so-called 'Risco Verde' and 'Confital', respectively, where fishing activities are allowed. Data collection were undertaken during Summer-Autumn of 2013 (Table 1), at 7 random times. From an environmental point of view, both areas at each location



were similar in terms of depth, type of bottom, wave climate and oceanography. At Cabrón and Risco Verde, sampling was performed between 10 and 18 m depth, on rocky bottoms of similar structural complexity, to minimize the possible effect of the habitat (so-called 'habitat effect', *sensu* García-Charton and Pérez-Ruzafa., 1999). At 'Canteras' and 'Confital', sampling took place between 3-5 m depth, on rocky bottoms of similar structural complexity.

	Locality (UTM)								
	Cabrón	Risco Verde	Canteras	Confital					
	27°52′N	27°51′N	28°08′N	28°09′N					
Date	15°23′W	15°23′W	15°26′W	15°26W					
T1	26/0	7/2013	8/06/2013						
T2	10/0	8/2013	22/07/2013						
Т3	12/0	9/2013	30/07/2013						
T4	22/0	9/2013	7/08/2013						
Т5	30/0	9/2013	12/08/2	2013					
Т6	7/1	0/2013	2/09/2013						
Т7	15/1	0/2013	12/10/2013						

Table 1. Sampled localities and times to compare fish assemblages between MAELI and MAELO at Gran Canaria Island.







Figure 1. Location of study areas in Gran Canaria Island.

3.2 Selection of fish species, trophic and functional groups

We selected three commercially-targeted fish species for the study: the parrotfish, *Sparisoma cretense*, the white sea-bream, *Diplodus sargus cadenati*, and the common two-banded sea-bream, *Diplodus vulgaris*. Furthermore, the island grouper, *Mycteroperca fusca* was selected at 'El Cabrón' and the Salema, *Sarpa salpa*, at 'Las Canteras'. All are fish species easily identifiable *in situ*, do not show any cryptic behavior that could produce bias for the visual census technique. These species were selected because of their commercial interest, their larger abundances and they capacity to response to conservation measures in the region (Brito et al., 1998, 2001, 2005; Tuya et al., 2006).

Fish populations (all species) were sampled by means of visual census techniques. At each sampling area, 4 replicated 25 m long transects were haphazardly laid during daylight hours. The abundance and size of fishes was recorded on waterproof paper by a SCUBA diver within 2 m of either side of transects, according to standard procedures (Brock, 1982; Lincoln- Smith, 1989; Kingsford and Battershill, 1998). This strip transect size gives optimal precision and accuracy for abundance and size-structure data of rocky-reef fish in the Canarias (Tuya et al., 2004, 2006). Biomass was calculated using available length-weight relationship for the Canarian Archipelago

(www.fishbase.org). All measured biotic variables were standardized to an area of 100 m².



We grouped fish species according to standard trophic groups: omnivorous, micro-invertebrate feeders, planktivorous, macro-invertebrate feeders, macro-invertebrate feeders-piscivorous and herbivorous (Tuya et al., 2004). Ideally, functional groups would be defined pos-hoc using experimental manipulations to define the true functional role of each species (Wright et al., 2006). However, such techniques are not realistically possible for entire fish communities, so we considered traits related to their life style and maximum size (*www.fishbase.org*, Table2.) to create functional groups (Halpern et al., 2008).

We calculated three diversity indices using the classic Shannon H' diversity index from overall abundance data, and the abundance corresponding to the different trophic levels and functional groups, providing a single value for each replicate. These indices estimated the taxonomic, trophic and functional diversity, respectively. The method provides identical sample size among all sites; H' values are comparable and hence can be used to quantify differences in biodiversity between areas and their protection status (Garrabou et al., 2002).



Figure 2. Visual census techniques to assess the abundance and size of fish populations.



3.3 Data analysis

Differences in the abundance and biomass of the target species were determined by applying analysis of variance with permutations (PERMANOVA) that contrasted differences between areas at each study zones (protected versus un-protected area).

The model incorporated the following factors: (1) 'Locality', fixed factor (MAELI versus MAELO), (2) 'Time' (Ti), random factor with seven levels—the seven study dates—and orthogonal to the previous factor. Data were square root transformed prior to analyses, and analyses were based on Euclidean distance (Anderson, 2001). A linear regression model tested whether species diversity, trophic diversity and functional diversity were significantly correlated.

Mobility groups	Size	Species (examples)
Demersal	Small	Sparisoma cretense
	Medium	Mycteroperca fusca
	Large	Epinephelus marginatus
Bentho-pelagic	Small	Pagellus acarne
	Medium	Diplodus cervinus
	Large	Seriola sp
Pelagic	Small	Chromis limbata
	Medium	Trachinotus ovatus
	Large	Sphyraena viridiensis
Benthic	Small	Bothus podas
	Medium	
	Large	

Table 2. Categorization of functional groups according to their mobility and sizes; examples of species considered within each group are provided.

4. Results



4.1 Commercially-targeted species

The results of the PERMANOVAs on the abundances and biomasses of the target species: *Diplodus sargus, Diplodus vulgaris, Sparisoma cretense* and *Mycteroperca fusca* in 'Cabrón-Risco Verde'; as well as for *Diplodus sargus, Diplodus vulgaris, Sparisoma cretense, Sarpa salpa* in 'Canteras-Confital' are shown in tables 3 and 4, respectively.

Diplodus sargus

In the case of 'Cabrón-Risco Verde', the abundance and total biomass were slightly higher in the MAELI (Fig. 3a-b, mean abundance = 6.43 ind 100 m⁻² ± 2.78, mean biomass = 867.54 g 100 m⁻² ± 433.95, mean ±SE) than in the MAELO (Fig. 3a-b, mean abundance = 5.87 ind 100 m⁻² ± 3.07, mean biomass = 418.74 g 100 m⁻² ± 240.35, mean ± SE). However, significant differences were not detected (Fig. 3a-b; PERMANOVA: 'Locality', p= 0.444 and p= 0.088 for the abundance and total biomass, respectively, Table 3).

On the other hand, at 'Canteras-Confital', the abundance and total biomass were significantly higher in the MAELI (Fig.3c-d, mean abundance = 12.69 ind $100 \text{ m}^{-2} \pm 6.79$, mean biomass = 477.38 g 100 m⁻² ± 271.74, mean ± SE) than in the MAELO (Fig. 3a-b, mean abundance = 1.21 ind 100 m⁻² ± 0.84, mean biomass = 43.99 g 100 m⁻² ±35.66, mean ± SE) (Fig. 3c-d; PERMANOVA: 'Locality', P=0.001 and P=0.001, for abundance and total biomass, respectively, Table 4).

Diplodus vulgaris

At 'Cabrón-Risco Verde', we did not observed significant differences in the abundance between the MAELI (Fig. 4a-b, mean abundance = 3.87 ind. $100 \text{ m}^{-2} \pm 2.11$, mean biomass = $371.78 \text{ g} 100 \text{ m}^{-2} \pm 241.43$, mean \pm SE) and the MAELO (Fig. 4a-b, mean abundance = 2.56 ind $100 \text{ m}^{-2} \pm 1.54$, mean biomass = $153.82 \text{ g} 100 \text{ m}^{-2} \pm 113.63$, mean \pm SE). However, we found significant differences for the total biomass between the MAELI and MAELO (Fig. 4a-b; PERMANOVA: 'Locality', P=0.039, Table 3).

In 'Canteras-Confital', the abundance and total biomass were significantly greater in the MAELI (Fig.4c-d, mean abundance = 0.74 ind 100 m⁻² \pm 0.57, mean biomass = 94.80 g 100 m⁻² \pm 132.53, mean \pm SE) than in the MAELO (Fig.



4c-d, mean abundance = 0.14 ind 100 m⁻² \pm 0.22, mean biomass = 7.09 g 100 m⁻² \pm 10.88, mean \pm SE) (Fig. 4c-d; PERMANOVA: 'Locality', p= 0.025 and p= 0.038, for the abundance and total biomass, respectively, Table 4).

Mycteroperca fusca

At 'Canteras-Confital', only one individual was spotted and so no statistical analysis was further carried out. At 'Cabrón-Risco Verde', the abundance and total biomass was larger at the MAELI (Fig. 5a-b, mean abundance = 1.5 ind 100 m⁻² ± 1.27, mean biomass = 458.62 g 100 m⁻² ± 520.56, mean ± SE) than in the MAELO (Fig.5a-b, mean abundance = 0.13 ind 100 m⁻² ± 0.21, mean biomass = 4.96 g 100 m⁻² ± 10.44, mean ± SE) (Fig.5a-b; PERMANOVA: 'Locality', p= 0.032 and p= 0.027, for the abundance and total biomass, respectively, Table 3).

Sarpa salpa

No individual was spotted at 'Cabrón-Risco Verde', and so no statistical analysis was carried out. At 'Canteras-Confital', larger abundances and total biomasses were recorded in the MAELI (Fig.7a-b, mean abundance = 13.33 ind 100 m⁻² ± 5.39, mean biomass 458.62 g 100 m⁻² ± 520.56, mean ± SE) than in the MAELO (Fig. 7a-b, mean abundance = 7.66 ind. 100 m⁻² ± 10.23, mean biomass = 4.96 g 100 m⁻² ± 10.44, mean ± SE) (Fig.6a-b; PERMANOVA: 'Locality', p= 0.004 and p= 0.025, for the abundance and total biomass, respectively, Table 4).

Sparisoma cretense

In the case of 'Cabrón-Risco Verde', significant differences were not observed between the MAELI (Fig.6a-b, mean abundance = 5.44 ind 100 m⁻² ± 1.21, mean biomass = 1598.32 g 100 m⁻² ± 784.82, mean ± SE) and the MAELO (Fig. 6a-b, mean abundance = 5.14 ind. 100 m⁻² ± 1.34, mean biomass = 620.61 g 100 m⁻² ± 250.02, mean ± SE) (Fig. 6a-b; PERMANOVA: 'Locality', p= 0.738 and p= 0.078, for the abundance and total biomass, respectively, Table 3).

Regarding 'Canteras-Confital', the abundance and biomass were greater in the MAELI (Fig. 6 c-d, mean abundance = 6.70 ind 100 m⁻² \pm 2.70, mean biomass 1864.53 g 100 m⁻² \pm 1343.73, mean \pm SE) than in the MAELO (Fig. 6c-d, mean



abundance = 2.89 ind 100 m⁻² \pm 1.51, mean biomass = 159.08 g 100 m⁻² \pm 95.21, mean \pm SE) (Fig.7c-d; PERMANOVA: 'Locality', p= 0.005 and p= 0.046, for the abundance and total biomass, respectively, Table 4).

Table 3. Results of way ANOVAs testing for differences between areas (Cabrón *versus* Risco Verde) and times, for the abundance and total biomass of commercially-targeted fish species. P-values < 0.05 are considered significant.

Cabrón Vs Risco Verde		Abundance				<u>Biomass</u>			
Diplodus sargus cadenati	df	MS	F	Ρ	df	MS	F	Р	
Locality	1	1.377	0.662	0.444	1	1044.0	4.073	0.088	
Time	6	2.457	1.728	0.144	6	475.5	3.337	0.008	
LoxTi	6	2.082	1.464	0.218	6	256.3	1.799	0.130	
Res	42	1.422			42	142.5			
Total	55				55				
Diplodus vulgaris	df	MS	F	Ρ	df	MS	F	Р	
Locality	1	1.886	2.688	0.156	1	520.799	7.803	0.039	
Time	6	1.954	1.763	0.137	6	202.028	1.988	0.088	
LoxTi	6	0.702	0.633	0.711	6	66.742	0.657	0.697	
Res	42	1.108			42	101.625			
Total	55				55				
Sparisoma cretense	df	MS	F	Ρ	df	MS	F	Р	
Locality	1	0.121	0.130	0.738	1	2058.96	4.625	0.078	
Time	6	0.362	0.797	0.585	6	649.69	3.980	0.004	
LoxTi	6	0.932	2.049	0.077	6	445.11	2.727	0.025	
Res	42	0.455			42	163.21			
Total	55				55				
Mycteroperca fusca	df	MS	F	Р	df	MS	F	Р	
Locality	1	5.910	6.022	0.032	1	12269.5	4.011	0.027	
Time	6	1.419	4.113	0.004	6	3120.6	2.206	0.052	
LoxTi	6	0.981	2.843	0.017	6	3058.8	2.162	0.050	
Res	42	0.345			42	1414.6			
Total	55				55				

Table 4. Results of 2-way ANOVAs testing for differences between localities (Canteras-Confital), times, for the abundance and total biomass index of individuals commercially-targeted species. P-values < 0.05 are considered significant.



Las Canteras Vs Confital			<u>Abu</u>	<u>ndance</u>		<u>Biomass</u>			
Diplodus cadenati	sargus	df	MS	F	Р	df	MS	F	Р
Locality		1	77.709	22.650	0.001	1	3068.685	33.378	0.001
Time		6	4.115	3.312	0.009	6	112.901	1.896	0.104
LoxTi		6	3.430	2.761	0.022	6	91.936	1.544	0.184
Res		42	1.242			42	59.520		
Total		55				55			
Diplodus vulgaris		df	MS	F	Ρ	df	MS	F	Ρ
Locality		1	2.448	9.483	0.025	1	208.878	6.504	0.038
Time		6	0.176	0.549	0.780	6	35.177	0.837	0.564
LoxTi		6	0.258	0.805	0.564	6	32.117	0.764	0.642
Res		42	0.321			42	42.021		
Total		55				55			
Sparisoma cr	retense	df	MS	F	Р	df	MS	F	Ρ
Locality		1	14.488	14.479	0.005	1	5.084	5.085	0.046
Time		6	0.890	0.713	0.638	6	2852.681	1.011	0.433
LoxTi		6	1.000	0.801	0.573	6	4444.058	1.575	0.171
Res		42	1.249			42	2820.191		
Total		55				55			
Sarpa salpa		df	MS	F	Р	df	MS	F	Ρ
Locality		1	72.470	24.679	0.004	1	24461.08	8.993	0.025
Time		6	3.552	0.766	0.606	6	3523.73	1.171	0.344
LoxTi		6	2.936	0.633	0.707	6	2720.00	0.904	0.510
Res		42	4.636			42	3008.84		
Total		55				55			





Figure 3. (A, B) Abundance and (C, D) total biomass (± SE) of the white seabream, *Diplodus sargus cadenati*, at areas within MAELI (black bars) or MAELO (gray bars) at each sampling time.





Figure 4. (A, C) Abundance and (B, D) total biomass (± SE) of the *common two-banded sea-bream*, *Diplodus vulgaris*, at areas within MAELI (black bars) or MAELO (gray bars) at each sampling time.





Figure 5. (A) Abundance and (B) total biomass (\pm SE) of the island grouper, *Mycteroperca fusca,* at areas within MAELI (black bars) or MAELO (gray bars) at each sampling time.



Figure 6. (A) Abundance and (B) total biomass (±SE) of the Salema, *Salpa salpa* at areas within MAELI (black bars) or MAELO (gray bars) at each sampling time.





Figure 7. (A, B) Abundance and (C, D) total biomass (\pm SE) of the parrotfish, *Sparisoma cretense*, at areas within MAELI (black bars) or MAELO (gray bars) at each sampling time.

4.2 Taxonomic, trophic and functional diversity

With regard to taxonomic diversity, no significant differences were detected between protected (MAELI) and non-protected (MAELO) areas at 'Cabrón-Risco Verde' (Table 5, Fig. 8-A). However, taxonomic diversity varied significantly between protected and non-protected area (p= 0.036, Table 4, Fig. 8-A) at 'Canteras'.

Differences in trophic diversity between protected (MAELI) and non-protected (MAELO) areas were not found (Table 4, Fig. 8-B). In turn, analysis of trophic



composition did not show significant differences (Appendix 2). In 'Canteras-Confital', we found that functional diversity was significantly greater (Table 5, Fig 8-C) in the MAELI than the MAELO, but the functional composition did not vary (Appendix 2).



Figure 8. Taxonomic diversity (A), trophic diversity (B), and functional diversity (C) on the two MAMPs studied.



		<u>Cabrón Vs </u>	<u>Risco Ver</u>	<u>de</u>				
Taxonomic Diversity	df	MS	F	Ρ	df	MS	F	Ρ
Locality Time	1 6	0.007 0.009	1.138 3.570	0.326 0.007	1 6	0.166 0.025	9.289 1.761	0.026 0.141
LoxTi	6	0.006	2.501	0.041	6	0.018	1.242	0.303
Res.	42	0.003			42	0.014		
Total	55				55			
Trophic Diversity	df	MS	F	Ρ	df	MS	F	Р
Locality Time	1 6	0.0000	0.002	0.969 0.797	1 6	0.016	1.251 1.533	0.305 0.187
LoxII	6	0.0023	1.097	0.384	6	0.013	1.863	0.119
Res. Total	42 55	0.0021			42 55	0.007		
Functional	"				"			
Diversity	df	MS	F	Р	df	MS	F	Ρ
Locality Time LoxTi	1 6 6	0.015 0.010 0.013	1.132 1.637 2.116	0.330 0.165 0.081	1 6 6	0.160 0.014 0.005	31.57 2.13 0.78	0.002 0.077 0.594
Res.	42	0.006			42	0.007		
Total	55				55			

Table 5. Results of 2-way ANOVAs testing for differences between areas and times, for the taxonomic, trophic and functional diversity at each location. P-values < 0.05 are considered significant.

4.3 Correlation between taxonomic, trophic and functional diversity

Taxonomic, trophic and functional diversity were positively correlated (Fig. 9).





Figure 9. Relationship between taxonomic, trophic and functional diversity. Linear regression models tested the significance of this relation separately for 'El Cabrón' (A, C, D) and 'Las Canteras' (B, D and F).



5. Discussion

5.1 Overall results

Our study aimed to test for differences in the abundances and biomasses of target species between areas that will be soon be implemented as marine protected areas and adjacent, un-protected, areas that may act as controls; this is an attempt to quantify the initial state ('state 0') to get baseline data to assess the so-called 'reserve effect' in the future. Such 'reserve effect' using a range of species have been demonstrated by a range of studies that showed that the abundances and total biomasses of certain species differed between protected and un-protected areas (Barret et al., 2006; Tuya et al., 2006; Brito et al. 1999, 1998, 2001, 2006, among others). To adequately assess the effectiveness of MPAs, before-after control–impact (BACIP) approaches are highly necessary (Edgar and Barret 1997; Edgar et al., 2004). In this sense, our study evaluated the 'reserve effect' immediately before the implementation of the start of the enforcement. Without a doubt, our data will help out to implement a proper BACIP protocols in the future.

Furthermore, we analyzed community-level differences between 'protected' (at 'state 0') and adjacent areas. We used our data to calculate species (taxonomic), trophic and functional diversity, reducing our multivariate data into single diversity values. Some authors have demonstrated that diversity are often higher inside than outside protected areas (Barret et al., 2007; Claudet et al., 2006) and even trophic and functional diversity can response to protection more rapidly than species (taxonomic) diversity (Villamor et al., 2012). Recent syntheses and empirical studies have highlighted that functional traits predict the effects of global changes on ecosystem services better than species diversity *per se* (Cadotte et al., 2011) and many ecosystem processes and services depend more on functional diversity than species diversity (Nystrom., 2006). Importantly, our study has demonstrated that, at the study locations in Gran Canaria Island, there is a clear connection between the 3 ways biodiversity of nearshore fishes was quantified, i.e. at the taxonomic, trophic and functional levels.

5.2 Cabrón-Risco Verde

Mycteroperca fusca, a top predator inhabiting shallow rocky reefs of the Macaronesia, was unique among the four studied species in the sense that we found larger abundances and total biomasses inside relative than outside the protected areas (at time 0, of course). In the Canary Islands, Tuya et al. (2006) found the greatest mean abundances and total biomasses of this species at El



Hierro Island (*ca.* mean abundances of 1.5-2 ind 100 m²), particularly inside the 'Mar de Las Calmas' MPA. We found similar abundance values for this species, even at the state 0 of implementation. This result is indicative of the good status of this fish at this area, as this species is slow-growing, large-sized, with low population turnover rates (Zabala et al., 1997; La Mesa et al., 2002; Bodilies et al., 2003) and is heavily targeted by both professional and recreational fishermen in the Canarias (Bas et al., 1995; Falcon et al., 1996; Tuya et al., 2006). A similar outcome has been described in the Mediterranean Sea, where the effects of protection from fishing near the coast have lead to increments in the abundance and biomass of another Serranid, the dusky grouper, *Epinephelus marginatus* (Zabala et al., 1997; La Mesa et al., 2002).

The sea-bream, *Diplodus vulgaris*, is a species targeted by both recreational and commercial fisheries in the Mediterranean (Coll et al., 2004; Lloret et al., 2004) and the Atlantic (Velga et al., 2010). This fish showed a higher biomass inside than outside the protected area. Small protected areas, such as MAEL can therefore offer an alternative for the sustainable development of this and similar species (Alós et al., 2011).

5.3 Canteras-Confital

The target species: *Sparisoma cretense*, *Diplodus sargus*, *Diplodus vulgaris* and *Sarpa salpa*, showed larger abundances and total biomasses between the future protected area and the neighboring un-protected area. This may be attributed to eased control of fishing activities; by law, fishing is prohibited inside beaches, what is also facilitated by the large number of users that somehow make difficult extraction of resources within the beach. As a result, this area can be a great site to conserve and regenerate fish population. *Sparisoma cretense*, *Diplodus vulgaris* and *Diplodus sargus* are highly prized in both local recreational and commercial fisheries across the Macaronesian region, and especially throughout the Canarian Archipelago (Bortone et al., 1991; Bas et al., 1995). The larger abundances and total biomasses recorded for *Salpa salpa* might be the result of a larger fishing pressure outside the protected area.

5.4 Link between taxonomic, trophic and functional diversity

Estimation of functional diversity is relevant to assess the health state of coastal resources, where there is increasing interest in clarifying the role of natural and human impacts. In this study, we only found higher functional diversity in 'Las Canteras' than in the adjacent un-protected area. If we take into consideration that increments in taxonomic, trophic and functional diversity are expected after the implementation of conservation measures, this data points towards a moderate reserve effect at the time 0.



Our data suggested a link between taxonomic, trophic and functional diversity. According with Clemente et al. (2010), depletion in species diversity constitutes a real loss of functional roles and subsequent cascading effects, so a link between both functional and species diversity is expected. This result does not agree, however, with those reported by Villamor et al. (2012) for five MPAs in the Mediterranean Sea. These authors concluded that, while species diversity shows a weak response to protection within MPAs, trophic and functional diversity better response to protection. Beyond, Villeger et al. (2010) found that taxonomic diversity (here quantified via species evenness) may be useful to work out changes in abundance distribution among species and it could lead to an increase in functional diversity (functional evenness). However, functional diversity (functional evenness), contrary to taxonomic diversity (species evenness), indicates whether the dominance species are functionally similar. In summary, both MAELs have potential to protect natural resources. It would be recommendable to support the protection and assess whether MAELs in the following years accomplished their goals.

6. Acknowledges

I gratefully thank Fernando Tuya, for his help, his advices and full availability. I acknowledge Cristina Fernández and Arturo Boyra include me in the *Micro áreas ecotúristicas litorales* project, I am happy to know them, they are an example to improve. I acknowledge A. Alemán and L. Png and Montymar association for their help during fieldwork. Special thanks to Lucia del Río for her good advices, help and patience. Finally, I thank to my family her help to grow, study and travel around the world, special thanks to my Mum, every day I remember her.

7. References

- Afonso P., Fontes J., Santos R., 2011. Small marine reserves can offer long term protection to an endangered fish. Biol Conserv 144: 2739–2744.
- Armsworth P., Chan K., Daily G., Ehrlich P., Kremen C., Ricketts TH., Sanjayan MA., 2007. Ecosystem-service science and the way forward for conservation. Conserv Biol 21:1383–1384.
- Angel C. Alcala and Garry., 2006. No-Take Marine Reserves and Reef Fisheries Management in the Philippines: A New People Power



Revolution. Royal Swedish Academy of Sciences Vol. 35, No. 5, pp. 245-254.

- Barrett, N.S., Edgar, G.J., Buxton, C.D., Haddon, M., 2007. Changes in fish assemblages following 10 years of protection in Tasmanian marine protected areas. Journal of Experimental Marine Biology and Ecology 345, 141–157.
- Barrett, N.S., Buxton, C.D., Edgar, G.J., 2009. Changes in invertebrate and macroalga populations in Tasmanian marine reserves in the decade following protection. Journal of Experimental Marine Biology and Ecology 370, 104–119.
- Bas C., Castro JJ., Hernández-García V., Lorenzo JM., Moreno T., Pajuelo JG., González-Ramos AJ., 1995. La Pesca en Canarias y Áreas de Influencia. Ediciones del Cabildo Insular de Gran Canaria, Las Palmas de G.C., 331 pp.
- Benedetti-Cecchi L., 2004. Increasing accuracy of causal inference in experimental analyses of biodiversity. Functional Ecology 18, 761–768.
- Bodilis P., Ganteaume A., Francour P., 2003. Recruitment of the dusky grouper Epinephelus marginatus in the North-Western Mediterranean Sea. Cybium 27, 123–129.
- Bortone SA., Van Tasell J., Brito A., Falcón JM., Bundrick CM., 1991. A visual assessment of the inshore fishes and fishery resources off El Hierro, Canary Islands: A baseline survey. Sci. Mar. 55:529–541.
- Brito A., Falcón J.M., González G., Pascual P., Báez A., Cabrera M., Sancho A., Barquín, J., 1999. Análisis del efecto reserva a corto plazo en la ictiofauna de las reservas marinas de las Islas Canarias. Proc. 1st International Workshop on Marine Reserves. Secretaría General de Pesca Marítima, Ministerio de Agricultura y Pesca, 110 pp.



- Brito A., Falcón G., Pascual A., Sancho C., Hernández J., García N., 2001.Valoración de indicadores naturales del efecto reserva en la Reserva Marina de La Restinga-Mar de las Calmas. Consejería de Agricultura, Pesca y Alimentación, Gobierno de Canarias. Departamento de Biología Animal (Ciencias Marinas), Universidad de La Laguna. 120 pp.
- Brito A., Barquín J., Falcón J.M., González G., Clemente S., Hernández J.C., Toledo K., Sangil C., Rodríguez A., Martín L. (2006) Valoración "in situ" de las poblaciones de especies indicadoras del efecto reserva en la reserva marina de La Graciosa y los islotes del norte de Lanzarote. Viceconsejería de Pesca del Gobierno de Canarias. Universidad de La Laguna. 107 pp.
- Brock RE., 1982. A critique of the visual census method for assessing coral reef fish populations. Bull. Mar. Sci. 32: 269–276.
- Cadotte M.W., Carscadden K., Mirotchnick N., 2011. Beyond species: functional diversity and the maintenance of ecological processes and services. Journal of Applied Ecology 48: 1079–1087.
- Castilla JC., 2000, Roles of experimental marine ecology in coastal management and conservation. J. Exp. Biol. Ecol. 250, 3-21.
- Claudet J., Pelletier D., Jouvenel JY., Bachet F., Galzin R., 2006. Assessing the effects of marine protected area (MPA) on a reef fish assemblage in a northwestern Mediterranean marine reserve: identifying community-based indicators. Biological Conservation 130, 349–369.
- Claudet J., Osenberg CW., Domenici P., Badalamenti F and others, 2010. Marine reserves: Fish life history and ecological traits matter. Ecol Appl 20: 830–839.
- Claudet J., Guidetti P., Mouillot D., Shears NT., Micheli F., 2011. Ecological effects of marine protected areas: conservation, restoration, and



functioning. In: Claudet J (ed) Marine protected areas a multidisciplinary approach. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, p 37–71.

- Clemente S., Hernández J.C., Rodríguez A, Brito A., 2010. Identifying keystone predators and the importance of preserving functional diversity in sublittoral rocky-bottom areas. Mar Ecol Prog Ser, 413: 55–67.
- Coll J., Linde M., Garcia-Rubies A., Riera F., Grau A.M., 2004. Spear fishing in the Balearic Islands (west central Mediterranean): species affected and catch evolution during the period 1975–2001. Fish. Res. 70, 97–111.
- Duarte C.M., 2000. Marine biodiversity and ecosystem services: an elusive link. Journal of Experimental Marine Biology and Ecology 250, 117–131.
- Edgar GJ., Barett NV., 1997. Short-term monitoring of biotic change in Tasmanian marine reserves. J. Exp. Mar. Biol. Ecol. 213: 261–279.
- Edgar GJ., Bustamante RH., Farina JM., Calvopina M., Martínez C,Toral-Granda MV., 2004. Bias in evaluating the effects of marine protected areas: The importance of baseline data for the Galapagos Marine Reserve. Environ. Conserv. 31: 212–218.
- Falcón JM., Bortone SA., Brito A., Bundrick CM., 1996. Structure and relationships within and between the littoral rock-substrate fish communities off four islands in the Canarian Archipelago. Mar. Biol. 125: 215–231.
- Fiske S.J., 1992. Sociocultural aspects of establishing marine protected areas. Ocean Coastal Management, 17(1): 25–46.
- García-Charton J.A, Pérez-Ruzafa A., 1999. Ecological heterogeneity and the evaluation of the effects of marine reserves. Fish. Res., 42: 1-20.



- Garrabou J., Ballesteros E., Zabala M., 2002. Structure and dynamics of north-western Mediterranean rocky benthic communities along a depth gradient. Estuarine, Coastal and Shelf Science 55 (3), 493–508.
- Gollasch S., 2006.Overview and introduced aquatic species in European navigational and adjacent. Helgoland Marine research, 60, 84-89.
- Gollasch S., 2007. International collaboration on marine bioinvasions The ICES response. Marine Pollution bulletin 55:353-359.
- Guidetti P., Verginella L., Viva C., Odorico R., Boero F., 2005. Protection effects on fish assemblages, and comparison of two visual census techniques in shallow artificial rocky habitats in the northern Adriatic Sea. J. Mar. Biol. Assoc. UK 85: 247–255.
- Halpern B., Floete, S., 2008. Functional diversity responses to changing species rischness in reef fish communities. Marine ecology progess series. Vol. 364: 147–156.
- Harley C., Randall Hulttgren K., Miner BG., Sorte JB., Thornber CS., Rodriguez LF., Tomanek L., Williams, S.L. 2006. The impact of climate change in coastal marine systems. Ecology Letters 9, 228-241.
- Harmelin-Vivien JG., Bachet F., García F., 1995. Mediterranean marine protected reserves: Fish indices as tests of protection efficiency. PSZNI: Mar. Ecol. 16: 233–250.
- Hereu B., Zabala M., Sala E., 2008. Multiple controls of community structure and dynamics in a sublittoral marine environment. Ecology 89 (12), 3423–3435.



- Himes A., 2007. Performance indicators in MPA management: Using questionnaires to analyze stakeholder preferences. Ocean & Coastal management 50, 329-351.
- Horta B., Erzini K., Jennifer E., Folha H., Gonçalves E..2013. 'Reserve effect' within a temperate marine protected area in the north-eastern Atlantic. Marine Ecology progress series Vol 481.11-24.
- Jackson J.B.C. (and 18 other authors)., 2001. Historical overfishing and the recent collapse of coastal ecosystems. Science, 293, 629-638.
- Alós J., Cabanellas-Reboredo M.,,March D.,2011. Spatial and temporal patterns in the movement of adult two-banded sea bream Diplodus vulgaris (Saint-Hilaire, 1817).Fisheries Research 115-116:82-88
- Kingsford M., Battershill C., 1998. Studying marine temperate environments: A handbook for ecologists. Canterbury Univ. Press, Christchurch, New Zealand, 335 pp.
- La Mesa G., Louisy P., Vacchi M., 2002. Assessment of microhabitat preferences in juvenile dusky grouper (Ephinephelus marginatus) by visual sampling. Marine Biology, 175–185.
- Lauck T., Clark CW., Mangel M., Munro GR., 1998, Implementing the precautionary principle in fisheries management through marine reserves. Ecol. Appl. 8, S72-S78.
- Lincoln-Smith MP., 1988. Effects of observer swimming speed on sample counts of temperate rocky reef assemblages. Mar. Ecol. Prog. Ser. 43: 223–231.



- Lloret, J., Zaragoza, N., Caballero D., Font T., Casadevall M., Riera V., 2008. Spearfishing pressure on fish communities in rocky coastal habitats in a Mediterranean marine protected area. Fish. Res. 94, 84–91.
- Perez L., 2013. Fishers as advocates of marine protected areas: a case study from Galicia(NW Spain). Marine Policy, 41, 95–102.
- McGill B. J., Enquist B., Weiher E., Westoby M., 2006. Rebuilding community ecology from functional traits. Trends in Ecology and Evolution 21:178-185.
- Micheli F., Halpern BS., Botsford LW., Warner RR., 2004. Trajectories and correlates of community change in no-take marine reserves. Ecol Appl 14: 1709–1723.
- Micheli F., Benedetti-Cecchi L., Gambaccini S., Bertocci I., Borsini C., Osio GC., Romano F., 2005. Cascading human impacts, marine protected areas, and the structure of Mediterranean reef fish assemblages. Ecol Monogr 75: 81–102.
- Mora C., Andrefouet S., Costello M.J., Kranenburg C., Rollo A., Veron J., Gaston K.J., Myers R.A., 2006. Coral reefs and the global network of marine protected areas. Science 312, 1750–1751.
- Nyström M., 2006. Redundancy and response diversity of functional groups: implications for the resilience of coral reefs. Ambio 35, 30–35.
- O'Connor N. E., Grabowski J., Ladwig L., Bruno J., 2008. Simulated predator extinctions: predator identity affects survival and recruitment of oysters. Ecology 89:428-438.
- Ray Hilborn JM., Orensanz PA., 2005. Institutions, incentives and the future of fisheries. Royal society.



- Salm RV., Clark J.R., Siirila E., 2000 Marine and coastal protected areas: a guide for planners and managers. IUCN. Washington DC.
- Shears N.T., Babcock R.C., 2003. Continuing trophic cascade effects after 25 years of no-take marine reserve protection. Marine Ecology Progress Series 246, 1–16.
- Tisdell C., 1986. Conflicts about living marine resources in Southeast Asian and Australian waters: turtles and dugong cases. Marine Resource Economics, 3: 89–109.
- Tuya F., Boyra A., Sánchez-Jerez P., Barbera C., Haroun R.J., 2004. Relationships among fishes, the long-spined sea urchin Diadema antillarum and algae throughout the Canarian Archipelago. Marine Ecology Progress Series 278, 157–169.
- Tuya F., García-Diez C., Espino F., Haroun RJ., 2006. Assessment of the effectiveness of two marine reserves in the Canary Islands (eastern Atlantic). Ciencias Marinas 32 (3): 505–522.
- Tuya F., Ortega-Borges P., Sanchez-Jerez, Haroun R.J., 2006. Effect of fishing pressure on the spatio-temporal variability of the parrotfish, *Sparisoma cretense* (Pisces: Scaridae), across the Canarian Archipelago (eastern Atlantic).Fisheries Research 77, 24–33.
- Vega T., D'Anna G., Badalamenti F., Pérez-Ruzafa AP., 2008. Habitat connectivity as a factor affecting fish assemblages in temperate reefs. Aquat Biol 1: 239–248.
- Velga P., Ribeiro J., Goncalves JMS., Erzini K., 2010. Quantifying recreational shore angling catch and harvest in southern Portugal (north-east Atlantic Ocean):implications for conservation and integrated fisheries management. J. Fish Biol. 76, 2216–2237.



- Villamor A., Becerro M.A., 2012.Species, trophic, and functional diversity in marine protected and non-protected areas. Journal of Sea Research 73, 109-116.
- Villeger S., Ramos J., Flores D., Mouillot D., 2010. Contrasting changes in taxonomic vs. functional diversity of tropical fish communities after habitat degradation. Ecological Applications, 20(6), pp. 1512-1522.
- Wilson E.O., 2000. On the future of conservation biology. Conservation Biology 14, 1–3.
- Wolfenden J., Cram F., and Kirkwood B., 1994. Marine reserves in New Zealand: a survey of community reactions. Ocean Coastal Management, 25: 31–51.
- Wright JP., Naeem S., Hector A., Lehman C., Reich PB., Schmid B, Tilman D., 2006. Conventional functional classification schemes underestimate the relationship with ecosystem functioning. Ecol Lett 9:111–120
- Zabala, M., Garcı'a-Rubies A., Louisy P., Sala E., 1997. Spawning behavior of the Mediterranean dusky grouper Ephinephelus marginatus (Lowe, 1834) (Pisces, Serranidae) in the Medes Islands Marine Reserve (NW Mediterranean, Spain). ScientiaMarina 61, 65–77.



8. Appendix

Appendix 1. The positive effects of small-sized reserves around the world.

	Polunin & Roberts (1993)		Agardy (1993)			Roberts & Hawkins (1997)
D	Saba Marine	Ambergris	Reserva Biostera Sian Ka'an	Parque Marino Isla	Gran Barrera de	Anse
Reserve	Park Netherlands	Caye	(Quintana Roo)	Saba Antillas	Arrecifes	Chastanet
Country	Antilles	Belize	Méjico	Neerlandesas	Australia	St. Lucía
Size (ha)	20	20	320000			2.6
Age	4	4	7			2
Indicators: ecologic/fishing						
Total density of fishes	+	+	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	+
Total biomass of fishes	+	+	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	+
Density of predators fishes	+	+	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	+
Biomass of predators fishes	+	+	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	+
Species diversity	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.
Species size average	+	+	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	+
Predators size average Density of commercial	+	+	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	+
target fishes			n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	
Indicators:socio-economic						
Tourist uses	n.a.	n.a.	+	+	+	n.a.
Divers	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	+	+	+
Fishing local benefits	+	+	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.
Economic local benefits	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.
Enviroment local benefits	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.



Russ et al. (2004)	Parnell et al. (2005)	Melita A. Samoilys et al. 2007					Harmelin -Viven et al. (2008)					
Apo Jalan d	I o Iollo	Handresse	Pandano	Asina	Bilang-	Batasa	Domenalo	Cabo de	Cabrer	Carry-le-	Madaa	Tabarc
Island	La Jolla Californiam	Bohol	n	n	bilangan	n	Banyuis	Palos	а	Rouet	Medes Españ	а
Filipinas	US	Filipinas					Francia	España		Francia	a	
22.5	216	50	20	66	10.5	21	650	1898	8680	85	418	1400
>18		12	3	7	8	8	>10					
n.a.	_	+	+	+	+	+	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	+	+	+	+	+	+
n.a.	0	+	+	+	+	+	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.
+	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	+	+			+	+
n.a.	0	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.
	0											
n.a.	0	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.
n.a.	0	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.



Claudet

et al.

(2008)

La	La	Cabo de		San	~	Medes	Cerbere-	Cap	Carry- le-	Bouches de	Siis Mal	
Restinga	Graciosa	Palos	Tabarca	Antonio	Columbretes	Islands	Banyuls	Couronne	Rouet	Bonifacio	di Ventre	
España							Francia				Italia	
180	1225	270	120	110	1883	93	65	210	85	1200	529	
14	13	13	22	15	18	25	34	14	26	17	15	
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	
n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	



Appendix 2. Results of two way ANOVAs testing for differences between localities, times, for the species, trophic and functional composition each marine reserve. *Significant difference at *P*<0.05.

		<u>Cabrón Vs F</u>	<u>Risco Verc</u>	<u>de</u>	Canteras Vs Confital			
Taxonomic composition	df	MS	F	Ρ	df	MS	F	Ρ
Locality Time LoxTi Res. Total	1 6 6 42 55	0.976 0.287 0.227 0.113	4.309 2.543 2.006	0.087 0.032 0.091	1 6 42 55	1.116 0.275 0.280 0.185	3.981 1.488 1.518	0.098 0.199 0.195
Trophic composition	df	MS	F	Р	df	MS	F	Ρ
Locality Time LoxTi Res. Total	1 6 6 42 55	0.004 0.032 0.016 0.024	0.226 1.317 0.658	0.624 0.281 0.677	1 6 42 55	0.187 0.045 0.145 0.089	1.295 0.514 1.648	0.305 0.799 0.168
Functional composition	df	MS	F	Р	df	MS	F	Ρ
Locality Time LoxTi Res. Total	1 6 6 42 55	0.009 0.147 0.188 0.084	0.048 1.731 2.219	0.835 0.139 0.062	1 6 6 42 55	0.378 0.057 0.226 0.099	1.671 0.573 2.284	0.246 0.750 0.051





